$\mathsf{C} \circ \mathsf{M} \, \mathsf{M} \, \mathsf{I} \, \mathsf{S} \, \mathsf{S} \, \mathsf{I} \circ \mathsf{N}$

POLICIES

SAN DIEGO LAFCO

2021

San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission 9335 Hazard Way • Suite 200 San Diego • CA • 92123 858.614-7755 • www.sdlafco.org

PREFACE

The San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission has adopted policies to implement the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 consistent with State legislative findings and declarations regarding orderly growth and development.

The policies assist the Commission in making balanced decisions while providing government officials and the public with an enhanced understanding of the factors considered in LAFCO deliberations.

MICHAEL D. OTT Executive Officer

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY

Regional Water Quality Control Boards	A-100
San Diego Association of Governments and the Regional Growth Management Strategy	A-101
Cities Ad Hoc Advisory Committee	A-102
Internet Resources	A-103
California Public Records Act Requests	A-104
Retention of Electronic Documents	A-105
Records Management Program	A-106
Social Media Program	A-107
Translation Protocols and Accommodations	A-108
FISCAL POLICY	
Fiscal Operations	F-100
San Diego LAFCO Fund Balance	F-101
LEGISLATIVE POLICY	
City Annexation of Unincorporated territory within Special Districts	L-100
Preservation of Open Space and Agricultural Lands	L-101
Spheres of Influence of Cities and Special Duties	L-102
Recognition of Unincorporated Communities	L-103
LAFCO-Initiated Changes of Organization	L-104
Unincorporated Islands	L-105
Strategy for Conducting and Using Municipal Service Reviews	L-106
Jurisdictional Issues Associated with Proposed or Pending Changes of Organization or Reorganization	L-107
Water Supply and Reliability Regulatory Guidelines	L-108
Water Supply and Reliability Legislative Policy Guidelines	L-109
Review and Approval of Fire Protection Contracts and Agreements	L-110
Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities	L-111
Conduct of Protest Hearings	I-112

REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARDS

Purpose

To support the goals of the San Diego and Colorado River Basin Regional Water Quality Control Boards.

Background

San Diego County is split between the jurisdictions of two Regional Water Quality Control Boards; the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) oversees the western portion of the County to the crest of the Laguna Mountains and the Colorado River Basin RWQCB serves eastern San Diego County. The primary duty of Regional Water Quality Control Boards is to protect the quality of domestic waters in accordance with the State Porter-Cologne Water Quality Act and the National Clean Water Act. The Regional Boards, whose members are appointed by the Governor, adopt water quality plans for specific ground or surface water basins and prescribe and enforce requirements on all domestic and industrial waste discharges. Additionally, the Boards conduct surveillance and investigation of any source of water pollution.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

- Cooperate with the San Diego and Colorado River Basin Regional Water Quality Control Boards in preserving the quality of the region's water resources;
- Inform the Regional Boards of changes in San Diego LAFCO policy or programs which may affect the goals or programs of the Regional Boards; and
- 3. Consider the goals of Regional Boards when considering changes to jurisdictional boundaries or spheres of influence.

Adopted: May 11, 1970 Amended: April 18, 1974 Reviewed: June 4, 1990 Amended: May 4, 1998

SAN DIEGO ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS AND THE REGIONAL GROWTH MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

Purpose

To recognize San Diego Association of Government (SANDAG) programs and studies as relevant to San Diego LAFCO and to establish voluntary compliance with the SANDAG-administered Regional Growth Management Strategy.

Background

SANDAG, as a joint powers authority, is the regional planning agency and "council of governments" for the San Diego region. The Association is governed by a Board of Directors composed of elected officials from each of the region's 19 local governments, assisted by advisory members from the U.S. Department of Defense, the California Department of Transportation, the San Diego Unified Port District, the San Diego County Water Authority, and Tijuana/Baja California, Mexico.

SANDAG Directors adopt plans and policies for regional issues such as growth, transportation, air quality, and economic development. Additionally, SANDAG staff performs specialized technical studies and analysis of information involving growth projections and demographics, which are utilized by local governments and other public and private organizations.

In November 1988, San Diego County voters approved the *Regional Planning and Growth Management Review Measure*, which required the establishment of a Regional Planning and Growth Control Review Board to formulate a plan for maintaining quality of life. SANDAG was designated as the Review Board and subsequently developed the *Regional Growth Management Strategy*.

The Strategy establishes standards to measure the region's quality of life and recommends governmental objectives and actions to help achieve these standards. SANDAG member agencies, through an amendment to the joint powers agreement, agreed to certify consistency of their General Plans with the Strategy. Regional and single purpose public agencies were asked to voluntarily achieve consistency with the Strategy. Accordingly, on November 17, 1992, San Diego LAFCO entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with SANDAG (as the Regional Planning and

Growth Control Management Board) to achieve consistency between the Commission's plans and programs and the Regional Growth Management Strategy and to participate in the implementation of the Strategy.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

- Recognize the programs and studies of SANDAG when evaluating jurisdictional changes, spheres of influence, and other San Diego LAFCO programs and policies;
- 2. Utilize the most recent SANDAG growth forecast for planning purposes;
- 3. Implement the Regional Growth Management Strategy's recommended actions by amending relevant San Diego LAFCO plans, policies and programs as necessary;
- 4. Implement the relevant portions of the Regional Growth Management Strategy;
- 5. Participate in the Regional Growth Management Strategy Self-Certification process; and
- 6. Notify the Regional Growth Management Review Board of changes to San Diego LAFCO plans and programs that affect the Strategy.

Adopted: January 4, 1993 Reviewed: May 4, 1998

CITIES AD HOC ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Purpose

To enable San Diego LAFCO to receive comments and technical advice from cities on an ad hoc basis.

Background

In 1969, San Diego LAFCO established a Special Districts Advisory Committee to provide technical advice to the Commission. A Cities Advisory Committee was established in 1975 to complement the Special Districts Advisory Committee and to provide comments on complex proposals involving cities. The Cities Advisory Committee provided valuable assistance to San Diego LAFCO, especially during the analysis of multi-issue proposals. Over the years, however, participation and attendance declined due to conflicting meeting schedules and because the majority of proposals considered by the committee have primarily affected special districts. Accordingly, in December 1996, a majority of cities in the County recommended that the standing Cities Advisory Committee be replaced with an ad hoc committee, which could be convened as necessary, to review proposals involving cities. The Committee would not be considered a standing committee with a continuing subject matter jurisdiction or a fixed meeting schedule. Rather, the committee would have a temporary status and be responsible for providing advice to LAFCO on an ad hoc basis.

Policy

It is the policy of San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

 Authorize the LAFCO Chairperson or, alternatively, delegate responsibility to the Executive Officer, to appoint as necessary, a Cities Ad Hoc Advisory Committee composed of representatives of the subject and affected cities, plus a nonvoting representative of the County.

Adopted: April 7, 1997 Amended: May 7, 1998

Cross-reference:

SAN DIEGO LAFCO RULES:

-Section 1.9 Special Districts Advisory Committee -Section 1.10 Cities Advisory Committee

INTERNET RESOURCES

Purpose

To support use of the Internet as a tool to provide an increased level of service to the public.

Background

The Internet is a worldwide system of telecommunication networks, which links together millions of users and computers, and is an important resource for San Diego LAFCO to provide better, cheaper and faster services to the citizens of San Diego County. San Diego LAFCO has established an Internet site in cooperation with the County of San Diego that will be creatively used to facilitate customer service. Connection to the Internet exists to facilitate the official work of the Commission. LAFCO staff must assume responsibility for the privilege of using these resources, respect the rights of other system users, and observe all relevant laws and contractual agreements.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

- Make timely and accurate information available to the public through the San Diego LAFCO website including posting of Commission agendas and Notices of Hearings (GC Section 56300 & 56661);
- 2. Establish clearance procedures for making electronic information available to the public;
- Encourage Commission staff to take advantage of Internet resources in order to provide superior services to the residents of San Diego County by observing the following conditions:
 - a. Use of the Internet is restricted to LAFCO related purposes;
 - b. Users will respect the legal protections provided to software programs by copyright and license;

A-103 ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY

- c. Users will protect data from unauthorized use or disclosure as required by state and federal laws;
- d. Users will safeguard system accounts and passwords;
- e. Users should avoid excessive consumption of electronic resources, time, and memory.
- 4. Reserve the right to log network and Internet use and to monitor utilization of file-server space.

Adopted: May 4, 1998 Amended: July 15, 2008

CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RECORDS ACT REQUESTS

Purpose

To establish a procedure for requests of LAFCO public records subject to disclosure per the California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250, et seq.).

Background

The California State Legislature, mindful of the right of individuals to privacy, finds and declares that access to information concerning the conduct of the people's business is a fundamental and necessary right of every person in this state. [Government Code Section 6250]

The California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250, et seq.) provides statutory direction regarding the types of public records available for inspection and subject to disclosure; the timelines for compliance with records requests; and the types of public records that are exempt from disclosure by express provisions of law.

San Diego LAFCO has responsively complied with requests by members of the public for LAFCO public records on a case-by-case basis in accordance with the requirements of the California Public Records Act. Administrative Policy A-104 (California Public Records Act Requests) has been developed to provide clarity and direction for procedural compliance with public records requests per provisions in State Law.

Administrative Policy A-104 states that LAFCO records subject to disclosure are available for public inspection during regular LAFCO office hours (Monday-Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., except holidays). When copies of LAFCO records are requested, Policy A-104 provides that records not exempt from disclosure will be made promptly available upon payment of fees covering direct LAFCO costs of duplication, including the cost of programming and computer services if produced in an electronic format.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to comply with all requests for copies of information by members of the public in accordance with the California Public Records Act [Government Code Section 6250, et seq.].

- San Diego LAFCO public records subject to disclosure are open to inspection at all times during the regular LAFCO office hours (Monday-Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., except holidays). Every person has a right to inspect any public record and any reasonably segregable portion of a record shall be available for inspection by any person requesting the record after deletion of the portions that are exempted by law. [Government Code Section 6253(a)]
- 2. Except with respect to public records exempt from disclosure by express provisions of law, San Diego LAFCO, upon a request for a copy of records that reasonably describes an identifiable record or records, shall make the records promptly available to any person upon payment of fees covering direct costs of duplication. Upon request, an exact copy shall be provided unless impracticable to do so. For producing non-exempt public records in an electronic format, refer to Policy 6 of Administrative Policy A-104 [Government Code Section 6253(b)]
- 3. San Diego LAFCO, upon a request for a copy of records, shall, within 10 days from receipt of the request, determine whether the request, in whole or in part, seeks copies of disclosable public records in the possession of LAFCO and shall promptly notify the person making the request of the determination and the reasons therefor. [Government Code Section 6253(c)]
- 4. In unusual circumstances, the 10 day time limit may be extended by written notice by the LAFCO Executive Officer to the person making the request, setting forth the reasons for the extension and the date on which a determination is expected to be dispatched. No notice shall specify a date that would result in an extension for more than 14 days. When LAFCO dispatches the determination, and if LAFCO determines that the request seeks disclosable public records, LAFCO shall state the estimated date and time when the records will be made available. [Government Code Section 6253(c)]

A - 104

- (a) The need to search for and collect the requested records from field facilities or other establishments that are separate from the office processing the request.
- (b) The need to search for, collect, and appropriately examine a voluminous amount of separate and distinct records that are demanded in a single request.
- (c) The need for consultation, which shall be conducted with all practicable speed, with another agency having substantial interest in the determination of the request or among two or more components of the agency having substantial subject matter interest therein.
- (d) The need to compile data, to write programming language or a computer program, or to construct a computer report to extract data. [Government Code Section 6253(c)]
- 6. If a requested non-exempt LAFCO public record is in an electronic format, LAFCO will make that information available in an electronic format upon payment of the direct cost of producing a copy of a record in an electronic format, including the cost to construct a record, and the cost of programming and computer services necessary to produce a copy of the record when either of the following applies:
 - (a) The electronic record is produced only at otherwise regularly scheduled intervals.
 - (b) The request would require data compilation, extraction, or programming to produce the record. [Government Code Section 6253.9]

- LAFCO staff will assist members of the public in making a focused and effective public records request that reasonably describes an identifiable record or records. Accordingly, LAFCO staff will:
 - (a) Assist the member of the public to identify records and information that are responsive to the request or to the purpose of the request, if stated.
 - (b) Describe the information technology and physical location in which the records exist.
 - (c) Provide suggestions for overcoming any practical basis for denying access to non–exempt records or the information sought.. [Government Code Section 6253.1]
- 8. A LAFCO Public Records Request Form is available for public download from the LAFCO internet website.

Adopted: May 2, 2016

RETENTION OF ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS

Purpose

To comply with the Public Records Act by establishing provisions for retention of and access to electronic communications, including text messages, voicemail messages, social media posts, and email messages sent or received in the conduct of LAFCO business.

Background

On March 2, 2017, the California Supreme Court published its decision in the case, City of San Jose v. Superior Court, concluding that the California Public Records Act applies to electronic communications that local government officials and employees send on private devices from private accounts. On May 1, 2017, The San Diego LAFCO determined that a local policy would be necessary to carry out the intent of this court decision. A number of different policy options were considered by the Commission prior to adopting a final policy, ranging from: (1) prohibiting the use of personal accounts for the conduct of LAFCO business -- as the federal government does; (2) allowing the use of personal accounts, but advising users of such accounts that copies of electronic communications should be sent to LAFCO's server -- so records requests can be honored without resort to private devices and accounts; or (3) allowing the use of personal accounts only if the electronic communications are stored for a minimum of two years and are searchable. After a thorough review and analysis of these available policy options, the San Diego LAFCO decided to combine options 2 and 3 above into one comprehensive policy on May 1, 2017. For further background on this policy, refer to the San Diego LAFCO's action on May 1, 2017 (Minute Item No. 8), and the Supreme Court decision, City of San Jose v. Superior Court (March 2, 2017, S218066) Cal.5th

The following definitions apply to the San Diego LAFCO's Policy A-105 regarding the retention of and access to electronic documents:

Email Message: An electronic communication sent and received via web mail or email client.

Social Media: Information posted to websites and applications that enable users to create and share content or to participate in social networking, including Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Snapchat, and LinkedIn.

Text Message: An electronic, written communication sent and received via telephone or Internet connection.

Voicemail Message: An electronic, aural communication sent or received via telephone or Internet connection.

Policy

Notwithstanding LAFCO Administrative Policy A-106 (Records Management Program), it is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation to follow the below provisions for the retention of text messages, voicemail messages, social media posts, and email messages sent or received in the conduct of LAFCO business:

- 1. Text messages, voicemail messages, and social media posts not saved to an archive or a more permanent medium are intended to be ephemeral documents, not preserved in the ordinary course of business. Accordingly, they do not constitute disclosable public records, as that term is defined by Government Code section 6252, subdivision (e). LAFCO officials and employees are not required to retain these electronic documents. Business done on behalf of LAFCO that requires the creation and preservation of records should be conducted in other media.
- 2. The San Diego LAFCO has an email server account with the County of San Diego for purposes of sending and receiving email messages. LAFCO email messages are accordingly subject to LAFCO's and the County of San Diego's email retention policies and procedures. The County of San Diego currently retains emails that are sent and received by LAFCO for a period of 60-days and then they are automatically deleted from the server. Therefore, email messages sent or received by the San Diego LAFCO from and after May 1, 2017 will be preserved for a period of 60-days and will be made available for public inspection on the same terms as other LAFCO records. Exceptions to this 60day retention provision will be emails that are preserved on paper or electronic

- archives. Emails that are preserved electronically or on paper will be retained and made available for a period of two years.
- 3. Except as provided in point 4 below, LAFCO officials and employees should use (or copy to an address on) the LAFCO email account with the County of San Diego for all email messages regarding matters of LAFCO business. Such email messages that fall within point 2 above will be preserved pursuant to point 2 and will be made available for public inspection on the same terms as other LAFCO records.
- 4. Commissioners (but not LAFCO staff) need not use the LAFCO's server account with the County of Diego for email messages to and from residents, business owners and property owners within the LAFCO's jurisdiction that are not addressed or copied to any other LAFCO officials and employees, and these Email Messages fall outside points 2 and 3 above. Nor need these officials use the LAFCO server account for email traffic in their personal, political and professional lives unrelated to LAFCO business. These Email Messages, too, fall outside points 2 and 3 above.
- 5. LAFCO will continue to comply with Government Code § 54957.5 which deems to be a public record any document communicated to a majority of officials, whether at the same time or seriatim, with respect to an item of LAFCO business regardless of the means of that communication, including via non-LAFCO email accounts. Commissioners are encouraged to forward such email messages not received via the LAFCO server account nor copied to LAFCO staff or to an email address designated for that purpose so they can be preserved in the LAFCO's email retention system, relieving individual Commissioners of any duty to preserve such email messages or make them available for public inspection.

This policy applies only to the conduct of LAFCO business. It has no application to communications to or from Commissioners in their other public and private capacities nor to communications to or from LAFCO staff that are personal, private or otherwise not LAFCO business.

Adopted: May 1, 2017

RECORDS MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

Purpose

To provide guidance to the Commission regarding the management, retention, and, if authorized, destruction of agency records.

Background

The implementation of a LAFCO document management system solution was driven by many factors, including, but not limited to:

- Limited space within the LAFCO offices to store records;
- Production and management of many permanent records, including almost 50year's-worth of LAFCO records to be scanned:
- Advancements in technology; and
- Changes in law.

Policy

Except for the retention of electronic documents per LAFCO Administrative Policy A-105, it is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation to follow the below provisions for the records management, retention, authorization and destruction of agency records in the conduct of LAFCO business:

General

- 1. The Commission's Executive Officer shall be responsible for administering this policy to ensure the effective management, retention and, as appropriate, destruction of records consistent with this policy and the Records Retention Schedule.
- 2. The Commission authorizes the destruction of any duplicative active or inactive record at any time.

- 3. Digital copies shall be made of all active and inactive records for retention, safeguarding and public distribution within the Commission's electronic document management system.
- 4. Active records shall be retained in their original form for a period of no less than ten years. Original documents may be destroyed if a digital copy exists and it is consistent with the Records Retention Schedule.
- 5. The Commission authorizes purging digital copies for inactive records if it is consistent with the Records Retention Schedule.
- 6. Digital copies records shall be retained indefinitely for Items listed in definitions 4, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 13.

Specific: Day-Forward Processes

- 1. Day-Forward Scanning and Addendums-Refer to the San Diego LAFCO Scanning User Guide for specific instructions regarding the procedures for scanning, indexing, and saving new documents and/or addendums (scanafter-the-fact).
- 2. The San Diego LAFCO Document Management System and Image Repository has the capability to export any PDF image document and send that document via email to customers or other County staff (refer to the San Diego LAFCO Scanning User Guide for instructions).
- 3. All letters received from customers will be scanned via the Day-Forward Scanning procedures. Letters will be considered a Correspondence Document Type and indexed and imaged accordingly (refer to the San Diego LAFCO Scanning User Guide for instructions).
- 4. In general, the Commission should retain original source documents that are detailed in a register, journal, ledger or statement for (10) years. Refer to the records retention schedule for specific accounting documents.

5. Rough drafts, notes, working papers (except audit), cards, listings, nonpermanent indices, and papers used for controlling work or transitory files may be destroyed at any time.

Definitions

- 1. "Records" shall be kept indefinitely in original, photographic, or electronic form pursuant to G.C. Section 56382. The Commission defines "LAFCO Records" pursuant to sections 3-12 of this policy.
- 2. Documents not herein defined as LAFCO "Records" are not considered "Records" pursuant to G.C. Section 56382 and shall be retained and disposed of according to the Records Retention Schedule provided as to this policy.
- 3. "Active Records" are documents that are less than two-years old and/or currently open or regularly accessed, used or referenced.
- 4. "Administrative Records" include, but are not limited to, accounts payable/receivable, budgets, audits, payroll timesheets, policies, statements of economic interest, public member recruitment proceedings, consultant contracts, vendor agreements, and personnel files.
- 5. "Digital or Electronic Copy" refers to an original document that has been imported or exported for archival purposes in the Commission's electronic document management system.
- 6. "Inactive Records" are documents that are more than ten-years old and/or closed or no longer regularly accessed, used or referenced, but still need to be retained for legal or practical purposes.
- 7. "LAFCO Records" are defined as records that must be retained indefinitely in compliance with G.C. Section 56382 and include the following documents.

- 8. Documents relating to change of organization or reorganization proposals which include, but are not limited to: application, petition or other initiating documents justification of proposal; property tax exchange agreement; assessor's statement of property valuation; indemnification agreement; certificate of filing; environmental review/CEQA documents; certificate of completion; map and boundary description; notices; order for change of organization/reorganization; staff report with recommendation; statement of boundary change; statement of tax rate area; LAFCO adopted resolutions; LAFCO approved meeting minutes; documents relating to outside service requests; approved meeting minutes; completed spheres of influence establishments and updates; completed municipal service reviews; Commission policies.
- 9. "Meeting Records" include, but are not limited to, agendas, minutes, staff reports, resolutions, and audio and/or video recordings.
- 10. "Planning Records" include, but are not limited to, municipal services reviews, sphere of influence updates, and related correspondence.
- 11. "Record" or "Records" are defined to include any paper, electronic media, audio file or other form documentation that records or transmits information originated and/or managed by the Commission.
- 12. "Records Retention Schedule" prescribes by type a plan for its management and life cycle and serves as the legal authorization for its disposition. A copy of the Records Retention Schedule is affixed to this policy.
- 13. "Regulatory Records" include, but are not limited to, change of organization or reorganization files, outside service requests, boundary maps and descriptions, and related correspondence.

Records Destruction

- 1. LAFCO staff members shall complete and sign a "Request for Destruction of Obsolete Records" form, listing the date and description of each document to be destroyed. A sample form is attached to this policy. The staff member submits the form to a designated LAFCO Records Coordinator.
- 2. The LAFCO Records Coordinator checks the documents listed on the submitted form to confirm that each document is: (1) not required to be permanently retained, or (2) has been retained for the legally required period of time. The LAFCO Records Coordinator also confirms that any applicable reproduction requirements (i.e., microfilming, etc.) for each document are complete. The LAFCO Records Coordinator also verifies that documents are not relevant to a lawsuit, administrative charge or investigation, or similar proceeding, which is in progress or which can reasonably be anticipated.
- The LAFCO Records Coordinator shall submit the form to the LAFCO Executive Officer, who reviews and signs the form and then returns the signed form to the LAFCO Records Coordinator.
- 4. After receiving the signed form from the LAFCO Executive Officer, the LAFCO Records Coordinator shall oversee the destruction of the documents. indicate the method of destruction on the form, sign the form and return the original signed form to the LAFCO Executive Officer.
- 5. The LAFCO Executive Officer shall retain all original signed forms requesting destruction of records for a minimum period of ten years.
- 6. The LAFCO Records Coordinator shall keep a master log of all destroyed documents which includes the titles or brief descriptions of the documents that were destroyed, the method of destruction and the date of destruction.

Records Retention Schedule

The "Records Retention Schedule complies with the records retention guidelines provided by the California Secretary of State and this policy and schedule applies only to the conduct of LAFCO business.

RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE

Record Type	Retention: Original Record	Retention: Digital Record
Administrative Audit Budget Commission Election General File Invoice Payroll Personnel Publication Report	10 years	Indefinite
Agenda Advisory Committee Commission	10 years	Indefinite
Correspondence Correspondence Environmental Legal Counsel Opinion Response Letters Suspense JPA JPA	10 years	Indefinite
Proposal Proposals	10 years	Indefinite
Other CALAFCO Newsletters EIR Reports Legislation Info Litigation Info Misc. General Info Task Force Info Special District Info Website Info	10 years	Indefinite
Microfilm/Fiche Microfilm and Fiche	10 years	Indefinite
Audio and Video Audio and Video Tapes	10 years	Indefinite

SOCIAL MEDIA USE PROGRAM

Purpose

To provide clear and flexible guidelines for San Diego LAFCO to augment traditional communication methods with the use of social media networks and platforms. This includes establishing baseline objectives and standards in managing authorized social media networks to help ensure appropriate protocols are continuously maintained in communications with the public.

Background

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization ("CKH") Act of 2000, pursuant to California Government Code Section 56300, directs the Commission to exercise its regulatory and planning responsibilities consistent with its written policies and procedures. The Commission is directed under subsection (f) to maintain an internet website to ensure pertinent agency information is readily available to the public; a provision consistent with a key premise underlying CKH for commissions to improve engagement with citizens in their respective jurisdictions. Several social media platforms are used by public agencies to promote government information and services to the public.

Definitions

The following words are defined as stated for purposes of this policy:

- a. "Commission" means San Diego LAFCO.
- b. "Commission account" means an account on a social media network which the Commission establishes and maintains, and over which it has control over all posts, except for advertisements or hyperlinks by the social media networks' owners, vendors, or partners. The Commission account will supplement, and not replace, legally required notices and standard methods of communication by or on behalf of the Commission.

- c. "Social media networks" means social media sites or platforms approved by the Executive Officer to be used to convey and post content information. Format types vary and include social networking, blogs, photo-sharing, video-sharing, and podcasts.
- d. "Posts" or "postings" mean content containing information, articles, pictures, videos or any other form of communication posted on Commission social media networks.
- e. "Users" refers to persons and/or organizations utilizing the Commission's social media sites.
- f. "Comment" or "Comments" mean and include any information, articles, words, pictures, videos or any other form of communicative content posted by users on Commission social media sites.

Objectives

- a. Social media networks are important channels in communicating Commission activities and receiving timely feedback.
- b. The Commission encourages the active and responsible use of social media networks to maintain and enhance effective communication with other governmental agencies, tribes, and members of the public.

Administration

- a. The Executive Officer serves as administrator for all the Commission's social media networks and related uses. The Executive Officer may delegate responsibilities to Commission employees or consultants as appropriate.
- b. The Executive Officer shall be responsible for approving all Commission accounts and securing all associated account information - including usernames and passwords.
- c. The Executive Officer shall be responsible for posting, monitoring, and removing content consistent with this policy. The Executive Officer similarly shall ensure this policy is implemented in conjunction with all related rules and policies adopted by the Commission.

- d. This policy and its administration shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws, regulations, and policies. This includes, but not limited to, established laws and policies regarding copyright, records retention, California Public Records Act, First Amendment, and Americans with Disabilities Act.
- e. The Executive Officer shall take reasonable measures to ensure current and pertinent Commission information is disseminated through appropriate social media networks.

General Standards

- a. All authorized and active Commission accounts shall be regularly monitored to ensure content standards as established in this policy are continually maintained – including user comments.
- b. For each approved Commission account, usage standards approved by the Executive Officer will be developed to optimize Commission use of the site.
- c. All approved Commission accounts shall be authenticated using an official Commission logo and email account.
- d. The following forms of content posted by external and authorized users may be subject to removal on any Commission social media network if they contain:
- 1. Comments that are not typically related to the information posted.
- 2. Profane language or content (video, sounds, etc).
- 3. Content that perpetuates violence, discrimination, or harassment.
- 4. Solicitations of commerce or advertisements.
- 5. Promotion or endorsement of political issues, groups, or individuals.
- 6. Conduct or encouragement of illegal activity.
- 7. Information that may compromise the safety or security of the public.
- 8. Content intended to defame any person, group, or organization.
- 9. Personal attacks against Commissioners or employees.
- 10. Disclosure of confidential, sensitive, or proprietary information.
- 11. Sexual or obscene content or links to sexual or obscene content.
- 12. Images or videos of a minor without the consent of the minor's parent.

- e. The Commission's website shall continue to serve as the agency's primary and predominant internet presence. Towards this end, whenever possible, content posted on the Commission's social media networks will also be made available on the agency website.
- f. Commission accounts shall be managed consistently with the Ralph M. Brown Act. Commissioners shall not respond to, "like", "share", "retweet" or otherwise participate in any published postings or use the account or any form of electronic communication to respond to, blog or engage in serial meetings with each other, or otherwise discuss, deliberate, or express opinions on any issue within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission.

Records Management

- a. Commission accounts are subject to the California Public Records Act. The content maintained on the social media networks must be retained pursuant to the Commission's records retention policy.
- b. Postings by a third party on a Commission account are not public records and are not subject to disclosure unless the posting triggers some action by the City, including a response or removal of the post.
- c. All postings on Commission accounts subject to retention, as noted in paragraphs (a) and (b) above, must be captured via screenshot and saved.
- d. Any content removed based on this Policy must be retained, including the time, date, and identity of the poster, when available, for six months or such other period as required by the Commission's records retention policy, provided that the Commission may remove content which violates this policy even if there is no reasonably practical means to retain that information.

Adopted: March 1, 2021

TRANSLATION PROTOCOLS AND ACCOMMODATIONS

Purpose

This policy establishes baseline protocols and accommodations for communicating the Commission's regulatory and planning activities into other languages to enhance community feedback that otherwise is underrepresented due to language barriers. The policy relatedly addresses the translation of online content and interpreter services.

Background

State law directs San Diego LAFCO to consider current and future community needs in meeting its overarching task by the Legislature to facilitate orderly growth and development. This includes considering comments from the residents and general public anytime LAFCO acts on proposed city or special district jurisdictional changes. Relatedly, LAFCO recognizes substantial numbers of persons who live, work and pay taxes in San Diego County are unable – either because they do not speak or write English at all, or because their primary language is other than English – to effectively communicate without reasonable accommodations.

Policy

It is the policy of San Diego LAFCO:

- The Commission recognizes and values the plurality of different cultures in San Diego County and is committed to proactively address and mitigate against language barriers in providing and receiving community feedback.
- 2. The Commission shall ensure a reasonable level of funding is available to support translation protocols in policy as part of the annual operating budget.
- 3. LAFCO will translate all written public hearing notices and displays required under statute and/or local policy into one or more other languages if spoken by 20 percent or more within the affected and/or targeted households based on census information.
- 4. LAFCO will translate all municipal service reviews' executive summaries into one or more other languages if spoken by 20 percent or more within the affected communities based on census information.
- 5. The Executive Officer will determine the appropriate census measurement (i.e., blocks, groups, tracts, places, or county) in determining the percentage of non-English speaking households in administering this policy.

- 6. LAFCO will ensure a translation feature is readily available on the agency website. Language options should include no less than the 10 most common other languages spoken in San Diego County as of the most recent census release.
- 7. LAFCO will make reasonable accommodations to provide interpreter services for Commission meetings, Commission Committee meetings, and other Commission community engagement events.
- 8. The Commission encourages the Executive Officer to exceed baseline standards established in this policy in mitigating against language barriers in implementing LAFCO's regulatory and planning activities as appropriate and within budgetary means.

FISCAL OPERATIONS

Purpose

This policy promotes transparency and accountability within the Commission's financial transactions; ensures that records reflect, in reasonable detail, an accurate account of the Commission's fiscal activities; and upholds compliance with accounting and auditing laws and regulations.

Background

To carry out its responsibilities, the Commission is empowered by State Law to make provisions for necessary quarters, equipment, and supplies (Government Code § 56380);¹ to retain employees or professional consultants [56375(k)]; to contract for employee benefits (56385); and to issue Commissioner per diem and reimbursement of reasonable and necessary Commissioner expense (56334). LAFCO is authorized to incur the expense that accompanies such activities [56375(j)]. To generate necessary revenue, the Commission may assess fees related to the cost of LAFCO proceedings [56383(a)], [66016(a)]; and apportion the Commission's annual net operating costs among the jurisdictions seated on the Commission [56381(b)].

The Commission is required to annually adopt a proposed and final budget [56381 (a)]; however, State Law does not provide LAFCO with specific fiscal objectives, fund balance requirements, or revenue management goals to be implemented through the budget process. In the absence of fiscal guidance from the State, San Diego LAFCO policy provides the foundation for the Commission's fiduciary responsibility.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

 Require commissioners, officers, employees, and others acting on behalf of the Commission to comply with this policy as the sole and exclusive authority for conducting the financial duties and responsibilities of the Commission, except as otherwise provided in law;

¹ All citations refer to Government Code

- 2. Establish accounting controls for transactions and maintain records, which conform to normal, standard accounting procedures and that accurately and fairly represent the true nature of transactions;
- Continuously evaluate internal accounting controls, procedures, and records for compliance with requirements of this policy and take action to remedy any deficiency;
- 4. Maintain a general ledger system and a chart of accounts. The impact of all transactions on assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenditure accounts will be recorded in the general ledger system. A General Journal will be maintained to record original entries not recorded in special journals. General Journal entries, which do not originate from a standard accounting cycle, shall be supported by documentation that includes a reasonable explanation of the transaction. General Journal entries in excess of \$1,000 shall require written authorization by the Executive Officer prior to entry;
- 5. Execute fiduciary responsibilities according to prudent standards (53600.3); the objectives of trustees shall be safeguarding principal first; meeting liquidity needs second; and lastly, achieving a return on funds under Commission control (53600.5);
- 6. Annually approve a proposed budget prior to May 1 and a final budget prior to June 15 (56381);
- 7. Consider modifications to an approved final budget if the approved budget is inadequate due to events occurring subsequent to final approval;
- Conduct a quarterly cash flow analysis to determine the short term cash needs
 of the Commission. Excess cash may be deposited in an interest bearing
 account with the County of San Diego Treasury and/or with the Local Agency
 Investment Fund (LAIF) (16429.1) or otherwise invested according to the
 Commission's fiduciary standards;
- 9. Maintain a Reserve Fund for emergency or priority uses. The Executive Officer is authorized to allocate monies from the Reserve Fund after consulting with the LAFCO Chair and Vice-Chair persons. All Commissioners will be notified of the allocation within 24 hours through a written statement that describes the situation. An information item, which describes the allocations, will be placed on the agenda for the next scheduled Commission meeting. Reserve Fund monies may be appropriated for operating costs, fixed assets, or costs associated with

- initiating or continuing priority activities. The Reserve Fund balance may not exceed 35 percent of gross appropriations in the previous fiscal year;
- 10. Authorize an annual independent audit of LAFCO's financial statements as an integral part of the Commission's management system. The independent auditor's opinion will be submitted for Commission review after the Executive Officer has reviewed and approved the auditor's opinion, recommendations, disallowances, and questioned costs. Responsibility for audit follow-up rests with the Executive Officer.

Adopted: November 4, 1996

Reviewed: May 4, 1998 Updated: March 6, 2000 Repealed: March 2, 2009 Adopted: March 2, 2009

SAN DIEGO LAFCO FUND BALANCE

Purpose

This policy establishes guidelines and requirements for the classification of fund balances consistent with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.

Background

The term, "fund balance" is used to describe the difference between assets and liabilities reported within a fund. In the past, fund balances have been classified into three separate components: reserved, designated, and undersigned. Limitations were associated with these classifications with respect to the purpose and usage of funds. The force of these limitations could vary significantly, depending on the funding source.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement Number 54. Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions for implementation in 2011. This new standard does not affect the calculation of fund balance; however, it altered various components used to report it. There are also new categories and terminology reflected in an approach that focuses on the constraints placed on the specific purposes of the funds. GASB Statement Number 54 applies to governmental funds such as LAFCO's General Fund.

With the shift of focus of GASB Statement Number 54, emphasis is now placed on the extent to which the government agency (LAFCO) is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the fund can be spent, rather than availability of fund resources. Under this new GASB, fund balances are classified as "non-spendable" and "spendable". Spendable categories are further classified as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. Definitions and LAFCO policies for non-spendable and spendable categories follow:

Non-Spendable: Amounts that cannot be spent or are not in spendable form (i.e. prepaid items, land held for resale, long-term receivables), or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

- Restricted: Amounts that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments. They may also be internally imposed by enabling legislation. Examples are debt service reserves, gas tax funds and grants.
- Committed: Amounts committed for specific purposes by formal action of the governing body, such as enacted ordinances and resolutions, which prevent the amounts from being used for any other purpose without the governing body's formal action. These also include contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed for us in satisfying those contractual requirements.
- Assigned: Amounts intended to be used for specific purposes without formal action by the governing body. This authority to determine the portions of a fund's balance that is to be assigned and reported as "assigned" in the agency's audited financial statements may be delegated to the Executive Officer or the Executive Officer's designee.
- Unassigned: Amounts in the General Fund in excess of non-spendable, restricted, committed, and assigned fund balances. For LAFCO, the General Fund Contingency Reserve and remaining spendable amounts which are not included in one of the other classifications would be classified as "unassigned" for presentation in the audited financial statements.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

1. Classify its fund balance in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. Reporting of fund balance in LAFCO's audited financial statements will be based on the amounts and classifications made by the Commission or its delegate as provided in this policy. Classification of fund balance reflects the current plans of the Commission with respect to the use of fund balance. These plans represent current intention and are subject to change and assignment. Furthermore, the classification of funds (reflecting current plans for asset use) does not in any way limit the ability to use those funds for other purposes, as deemed necessary by the Commission.

- 2. Classify monies in the fund balances as "non-spendable" and "spendable" consistent with GASB Statement Number 54. Spendable categories will be further classified as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned as described below.
 - a. Non-Spendable: The Commission shall designate fund balance monies as "non-spendable" for amounts that cannot be spent or are not in spendable form (i.e. prepaid items, land held for resale, long-term receivables), or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
 - b. Restricted (Spendable): The Commission shall designate fund balance monies as "restricted" for amounts that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments. The Commission may also restrict fund balance if required by internally imposed enabling legislation or regulations.
 - c. Committed (Spendable): The Commission shall designate fund balance monies as "committed" for amounts intended for specific purposes by formal action within the following two categories:
 - Stabilization: these monies are committed to absorb unexpected costs incurred during the fiscal year and include – but not limited to operating shortfalls, litigation, and controlling future increases in agency contributions.
 - ii. Opportunity: these monies are committed to pursue long-term efficiencies and/or related costs savings and include - but not limited to - Commission initiated proposals, capital purchases, prepayments, and transitional costs involving organizational restructuring.
 - d. Assigned (Spendable): The Commission delegates to the Executive Officer the authority to designate fund balance monies as "assigned" for specific purposes without formal action. This delegation is limited to \$125,000 per fiscal year and specific to legal expenses and costs associated with processing proposals with approved fee waivers.
 - i. The designation of assigned monies in cumulative excess of \$125,000 per fiscal year requires formal Commission approval.

- ii. The designation of assigned monies cannot result in unassigned monies falling below the minimum reserve level as described in this policy.
- e. Unassigned (Spendable): The Commission shall designate fund balance monies as "unassigned" for amounts that are in excess of non-spendable, restricted, committed, and assigned fund balances. Additionally:
 - i. The Commission shall maintain a minimum reserve level of unassigned monies equal to four months or 33.3% of budgeted operating expenses. These monies are intended to protect against cash flow shortfalls related to the timing of the collection of agency apportionments in the fiscal year.
 - ii. Should unassigned monies equal less than the minimum reserve level described in this policy, the Executive Officer shall present a restoration plan to the Commission for approval. The restoration plan shall provide options with a recommendation to replenish unassigned monies to meet the minimum reserve level within three fiscal years.
 - iii. The Commission shall maintain a maximum reserve level of unassigned monies equal to six months or 50% of budgeted operating expenses. Should unassigned monies exceed this maximum reserve level the Commission shall proceed to either designate the excess monies for committed uses or return to the funding agencies in the form of agency credits consistent with the provisions outlined in (e)(iv).
 - iv. Commission may authorize credits to reduce new agency apportionments as part of the annual budget process. Individual credit amounts shall be equal to the affected agency's proportional share of overall invoiced apportionments in the current fiscal year.
- 3. Review the fund balance no less than once per fiscal year as part of the annual budget process and take action as appropriate under this policy.

Adopted: June 3, 2013 **Amended: May 6, 2019**

CITY ANNEXATION OF UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Purpose

To provide guidance to mitigate annexation disputes between cities and special districts.

Background

The State Legislature recognizes that when areas become urbanized to the extent that they need a full range of community services, priorities regarding the types and levels of services that the community needs are necessary. The Legislature has also found and declared that a single multipurpose government agency, may be the best mechanism for establishing community service priorities; however, the Legislature recognizes the critical role of limited purpose agencies and finds that responsibility should be given to the agency or agencies that can best provide government services (Govt. Code § 56001). Implementation of this legislative declaration can result in conflicts, however, because unincorporated areas proposed for city annexation are often served by special districts that have made capital investments based on providing future service to the area. Therefore, it is necessary for San Diego LAFCO to have a policy regarding the review of disputed city or special district service areas.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

- 1. Consider the effects of proposed city annexations upon special districts; require the proponent of the annexation to prepare a fiscal report on the plan for services and impacts on the property owners and agencies affected by the proposed action.
- 2. Require cities and special districts to execute a contract/agreement or alter the boundaries of a proposed change of organization in order to alleviate boundary or service area disputes if the Commission finds that one or more of the following conditions exist:
 - a. A city annexation would seriously impair the financial base of a special district;

- b. The annexation would result in the double taxation of property owners for a single service;
- c. Annexation would prevent a special district from providing services to the remaining area of the district on an efficient basis; or
- d. Annexation would, in any other way, have a detrimental effect upon a special district's service capability.

Adopted: Reviewed: Amended: Unknown June 4, 1990 May 4, 1998

Technically

Updated: August 25, 2008

PRESERVATION OF OPEN SPACE AND AGRICULTURAL LANDS

Purpose

To further the policies and priorities of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 regarding the preservation and enhancement of natural open space and agricultural lands and provide guidance therein to applicants and other interested parties.

Background

The State Legislature has instructed Local Agency Formation Commissions to establish policies that address the preservation of open space and agriculture (Govt. Codes § 56300 and 56377). This includes considering the effects of all spheres of influence and jurisdictional changes on open space and agricultural lands (Govt. Codes § 56425 and 56668). Additional instruction involves prime agricultural lands and open space supporting wildlife as defined under Fish and Game Code 89.5. Specifically, Commissions are directed to guide development away from prime agricultural lands and open space supporting wildlife - unless that action would not promote the planned, orderly and efficient development of an area - and to encourage development of existing lands within an agencies' boundaries.

Gov. Code § 56064 contains a definition of "Prime Agricultural Land." "Prime agricultural land" means an area of land, whether a single parcel or contiguous parcels, that has not been developed for a use other than an agricultural use and that meets any of the following qualifications:

- (a) Land that qualifies, if irrigated, for rating as class I or class II in the USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service land use capability classification, whether or not land is actually irrigated, provided that irrigation is feasible.
- (b) Land that qualifies for rating 80 through 100 Storie Index Rating.
- (c) Land that supports livestock used for the production of food and fiber and that has an annual carrying capacity equivalent to at least one animal unit per acre as defined by the United States Department of Agriculture in the National Range and Pasture Handbook, Revision 1, December 2003.

- (d) Land planted with fruit or nut-bearing trees, vines, bushes, or crops that have a nonbearing period of less than five years and that will return during the commercial bearing period on an annual basis from the production of unprocessed agricultural plant production not less than four hundred dollars (\$400) per acre.
- (e) Land that has returned from the production of unprocessed agricultural plan products an annual gross value of not less than four hundred dollars (\$400) per acre for three of the previous five calendar years.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

- 1. Make appropriate distinctions between open space and agriculture and their separate functions and benefits.
- 2. Protect and preserve open space lands and of most importance lands that support wildlife against their premature conversion.
 - (a) Discourage proposals that would convert open space to other uses.
 - (b) The Commission reserves discretion to consider proposals involving the conversion of open space based on local conditions and in conjunction with ensuring orderly growth and development reflecting local habitat planning.
 - (c) Encourage the County of San Diego and incorporated cities to coordinate the designation and protection of open space lands and associated uses as community greenbelts and separators.
- 3. Protect and enhance agricultural lands and their uses.
 - (a) Discourage proposals that would convert any agricultural lands including and of highest priority prime agricultural to other uses.
 - (b) The Commission reserves discretion to consider proposals involving the conversion of agriculture based on local conditions and in conjunction with ensuring orderly growth and development. This includes considering the economic viability of agricultural uses within

the affected territory.

- (c) No harm provisions.
 - i) Lands otherwise qualifying as agricultural under Gov Code Section 56016 and prime agriculture under Gov Code Section 56064 shall not be subject to this policy and its limitations on conversions if left fallow, unsown, or disused for agricultural purposes at the present time and for more than 60 consecutive months.
 - ii) Lands otherwise qualifying as agricultural under Gov Code Section 56016 and prime agriculture under Gov Code Section 56064 shall not be subject to this policy and its limitations on conversions if their qualification commenced only within the last 60 consecutive months.
- (d) Encourage landowners to establish and/or expand agriculture uses if permissible under zoning. This includes – but not limited to – the Commission considering proposals to extend municipal services in support of maintaining and enhancing agricultural uses.
- (d) Recognize the uniqueness of agricultural uses in San Diego County to include above-ground and mobile production, such as nurseries, that merit separate considerations when applying State statutes.
- 4. Follow San Diego LAFCO's adopted procedures when reviewing proposals that could effect agricultural and open space lands and provided herein as Appendix A.

Adopted: November 6, 1978
Amended: June 4, 1990
Amended: May 4, 1998
Technically Updated: January 1, 2001
Technically Updated: June 16, 2015
Amended: October 5, 2020

Appendix A:

SAN DIEGO LAFCO PROCEDURES:
-Open Space and Agricultural Preservation

APPENDIX A

Open Space and Agricultural Preservation

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act requires LAFCOs to consider how adoption of spheres of influence or changes of local governmental organization could affect open space and prime agricultural lands. In determining spheres of influence, LAFCOs are directed to prepare a written statement of determinations with respect to the present and planned land uses including agricultural and open space lands (56425(e)(1)).

In reviewing and approving or disapproving proposals for changes of organization, LAFCOs must consider the effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of agricultural lands (56668) and guide development away from existing prime agricultural and open space lands and towards areas containing non-prime agricultural lands — unless that action would not promote the planned, orderly, efficient development of an area (56377(a)). LAFCOs are further directed to encourage development of existing vacant or non-prime agricultural lands within a jurisdictional boundary or sphere of influence before approving a proposal that would allow development of open-space lands outside of the jurisdiction (56377(b)).

Definitions

Agricultural Lands: Agricultural land means land currently used for the purpose of producing an agricultural commodity for commercial purposes, land left fallow under a crop rotational program, or land enrolled in an agricultural subsidy or set-aside program (56016).

Prime Agricultural Land: Prime agricultural land means an area of land, whether a single parcel or contiguous parcels, that has not been developed for a use other than an agricultural use and that meets any of the following qualifications (56064):

 Land that, if irrigated, qualifies for rating as class I or class II in the USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service land use capability classification whether or not the land is actually irrigated, provided that irrigation is feasible;

- 2. Land that qualifies for rating 80 through 100 Storie Index Rating;
- 3. Land that supports livestock used for the production of food and fiber and that has an annual carrying capacity equivalent to at least one animal unit per acre as defined by the United States Department of Agriculture in the National Handbook on Range and Related Grazing Lands, July 1967, developed pursuant to Public Law 46. December 1935:
- 4. Land planted with fruit or nut-bearing trees, vines, bushes, or crops that have a non-bearing period of less than five years and that will return during the commercial bearing period on an annual basis from the production of unprocessed agricultural plant production not less than four hundred dollars (\$400) per acre; or
- 5. Land that has returned from the production of unprocessed agricultural plant products an annual gross value of not less than four hundred dollars (\$400) per acre for three of the previous five calendar years.

Open Space: Open space is any parcel or area of land or water that is substantially unimproved and devoted to an open-space use and designated on a local, regional or state open space plan as any of the conditions described in Section 65560(b)(1) through (6).

Procedure

The following criteria will be considered when reviewing a proposal that could adversely affect agricultural and open space lands:

- 1. The use and value of the proposal area and surrounding parcels;
- 2. Determination as to whether any of the proposal area is designated for agricultural preservation by adopted local plans, including Local Coastal Plans and the County Agricultural Element; and
- 3. Determination of:
 - Α. Whether public facilities would be extended through or adjacent to any

- other agricultural lands to provide services to the development anticipated on the proposal property;
- B. Whether the proposal area is adjacent to or surrounded by existing urban or residential development;
- C. Whether surrounding parcels may be expected to develop to urban uses within the next five years; and
- D. Whether natural or man-made barriers would serve to buffer the proposal area from existing urban uses.

Special Annexation Procedures for Williamson Act Territory (51243.5, 56738, 56752)

The Williamson Act provides that a property owner may enter into a contract with a county or city whereby the assessed property taxes are reduced in return for keeping the property in an agricultural preserve for a minimum of ten years. Except as provided in Government Code Section 51243.5, on and after the effective date of an annexation by a city of any land under contract with the county, the city shall succeed to all rights, duties, and powers of the county under the contract.

A city may refuse to succeed to a Williamson Act contract if either of the following conditions exist:

- 1. Prior to December 8, 1971 the land being annexed was within one mile of the city boundary when the contract was executed and the city filed a resolution protesting the contract with the board of supervisors; or
- Prior to January 1, 1991: (a) the land being annexed was within one mile of the
 city boundary; (b) the city had filed a resolution protesting the contract with
 LAFCO; (c) LAFCO held a hearing to consider the protest; (d) LAFCO made a
 finding of inconsistency with future land use; and (e) LAFCO approved the city's
 protest.

Please refer to the applicable code sections for specific procedures regarding the annexation of Williamson Act territory.

SPHERES OF INFLUENCE OF CITIES AND SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Purpose

To establish the manner in which the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission establishes and updates spheres of influence.

Background

In 1972, the State Legislature directed LAFCOs to adopt a sphere of influence for each local governmental agency. Spheres are to be developed in cooperation with each agency to represent . . . the probable physical boundaries and service area of a local agency as determined by the Commission. . . (Government Code § 56076). Spheres of influence provide guidance for the expansion and organization of local agencies; however, designation of a sphere does not entitle future annexation or require that areas within a sphere be annexed.

Since enactment of AB 2838 (Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000), State law directs LAFCOs to periodically review and update spheres of influence in concert with conducting Municipal Service Reviews. Spheres are used as regional planning tools to discourage urban sprawl and encourage orderly growth; accordingly, spheres must be based upon a comprehensive analysis of all relevant factors and they must be up-to-date. To ensure comprehensive updates, city spheres are reviewed in conjunction with the spheres of affected special districts and a determination is made regarding whether a city or an adjacent special district should provide future services to unincorporated areas. Special districts are also subject to sphere adoption/update provisions.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

- 1. Designate spheres of influence in close cooperation with affected local agencies and communities;
- 2. Utilize spheres of influence to:
 - Guide deliberations on specific changes of organization;

- b. Discourage potential duplication of services by two or more local governmental agencies;
- c. Determine the need for specific governmental reorganization studies:
- d. Preserve community identities and boundaries;
- e. Encourage political and functional reorganization of local agencies which cross-cut communities;
- f. Encourage annexation of territory that has been specified as available for urban development prior to annexation of other areas; and
- g. Encourage the extension of urban services to existing urban areas prior to extending services to areas that are not devoted to urban uses.
- 3. Encourage cities, which are adjacent to unincorporated territory, to reconcile incompatible general plan land use elements with the County of San Diego;
- 4. Review city spheres of influence and special district spheres at approximately five-year intervals;
- 5. Discourage major amendments to a city or special district sphere if the sphere has been updated or affirmed within the prior five year period except for the following conditions:
 - a. Public health or safety needs; for example, amending a jurisdiction's sphere to permit annexation of a parcel that requires public sewer service because of a failed septic system;
 - b. Property under a single ownership that is split by a sphere boundary if the split property shares characteristics including access, geography, communities of interest and the manner in which services will be provided;
 - c. A reorganization involving two or more jurisdictions if the sphere of influence boundaries are coterminous and each jurisdiction agrees to the sphere amendments and reorganization:

- d. If a city or special district can provide adequate documentation showing that conditions have significantly changed to warrant a sphere amendment.
- Conduct sphere of influence evaluations and updates prior to the five-year interval if an affected jurisdiction or interested party submits a request based on adequate justification and the appropriate processing fee;
- 7. Maintain a sphere of influence for the San Diego County Water Authority, which is coterminous with the spheres of influence for SDCWA memberagencies, by amending or updating the SDCWA sphere concurrent with each amendment or update to spheres of member agencies;
- 8. Maintain a sphere of influence for the area of Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MET) in San Diego County, which is coterminous with the sphere of influence for SDCWA, by amending or updating the MET sphere concurrent with each amendment or update to the SDCWA sphere; and
- 9. Facilitate communication with affected public agencies, communities, property owners and residents concerning the sphere of influence update process.

Adopted: August 6, 1990
Amended: May 4, 1998
Amended: June 5, 2000
Technical Update: May 2, 2005
Technical Update: August 25, 2008

Cross-reference:

SAN DIEGO LAFCO POLICY:

-A-101 SAN DIEGO ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS AND THE REGIONAL GROWTH MANAGEMENT STRATEGY $\,$

-L-104 LAFCO-INITIATED CHANGES OF ORGANIZATION

SAN DIEGO LAFCO PROCEDURES:

-SPHERES OF INFLUENCE -LAFCO-INITIATED PROPOSALS

RECOGNITION OF UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

Purpose

To provide guidance to the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission in recognizing and preserving unincorporated communities during incorporation and city sphere of influence update proceedings.

Background

The San Diego LAFCO acknowledges that special efforts should be made to recognize unincorporated communities and, when appropriate, preserve their cohesive identity. The policy for identifying unincorporated communities does not supersede the factors specified in Government Code § 56668, which LAFCO is required to consider in the review of proposals for jurisdictional boundary changes. Rather, the policy furthers the intent of these factors as they relate to incorporation proposals and city sphere of influence updates. In particular, the policy is consistent with: (1) LAFCO goals of consolidating service responsibility and encouraging logical and efficient delivery of public services; and (2) the relevant portions of the Regional Growth Management Strategy, as defined by the Memorandum of Agreement between San Diego LAFCO and the San Diego Association of Governments.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

- Determine whether it is appropriate to exclude territory from a proposed incorporation boundary or city sphere of influence update after considering the following factors:
 - The sphere of influence of any neighboring city; a.
 - Whether affected territory is surrounded or substantially surrounded by a b. city;
 - The present and planned land uses in the area and if public services are C. adequately provided by special districts, county departments or private entities:

L-103 LEGISLATIVE POLICY

- d. The cohesiveness of a community; whether it is separated from neighboring jurisdictions by distinct geographic, political, economic or social characteristics or community plan boundaries, service provision, or historical development patterns; and
- e. An evaluation of impacts on an existing or proposed city's plans to improve or consolidate services.

Adopted: November 11, 1993

Reviewed: May 4, 1998

LAFCO-INITIATED CHANGES OF ORGANIZATION

Purpose

To establish priorities and guidelines for the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to initiate changes of governmental organization.

Background

In 1994, the State Legislature authorized LAFCOs to initiate certain changes in local governmental organization to encourage the logical and orderly development and coordination of local governmental agencies. Accordingly, Government Code § 56375(a) permits LAFCOs to initiate proposals for: consolidation of special districts; dissolution of special districts; merger of special districts; establishment of special districts as subsidiary districts to cities; or reorganizations including any of the above changes of governmental organization *if* the proposal is consistent with a recommendation or conclusion of a sphere of influence study or other study prepared by the Commission.

Prior to approving a LAFCO-initiated proposal, the Commission must find that public service costs are likely to be less than, or substantially similar to, the costs of alternative means of providing the service and the change of organization promotes public access and accountability for community service needs and financial resources (Govt. Code § 56881 (b)).

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

- Determine whether to initiate a reorganization study and resolution of application for a change of organization or reorganization based upon the results of a sphere of influence study or other study in accordance with state law:
- 2. Regularly conduct sphere of influence update studies for special districts in accordance with San Diego LAFCO Policy L-102 (Spheres of Influence);
- 3. Schedule sphere of influence studies to give priority to districts whose future reorganization is indicated by special circumstances; for example, subsidiary

- districts, special districts that are entirely included within another district or city; or special districts that were previously assigned a zero sphere;
- 4. Conduct sphere of influence studies if requested by affected public agencies, interest groups or individuals;
- 5. Identify sources of funds for conducting reorganization studies in cooperation with affected agencies; and
- 6. Encourage public agencies to initiate proposals for a change of organization or reorganization when a reorganization study concludes that public service costs are likely to be less than, or substantially similar to, the costs of alternative means of providing the service and a change of organization promotes public access and accountability for community service needs and financial resources.

Adopted: June 6, 1994 Amended: May 4, 1998 Amended: August 25, 2008

Cross-reference:

SAN DIEGO LAFCO POLICY:

-L-102 SPHERES OF INFLUENCE

San Diego LAFCO PROCEDURES:

-SPHERES OF INFLUENCE

- -LAFCO-INITIATED PROPOSALS
- -DISTRICT CONSOLIDATION
- -DISTRICT DISSOLUTION
- -DISTRICT MERGERS OF EXISTING SUBSIDIARY DISTRICTS
- -DISTRICT MERGERS AND ESTABLISHMENT OF SUBSIDIARY DISTRICTS
- -REORGANIZATION PROCEDURE

UNINCORPORATED ISLANDS

Purpose

To establish a policy governing the reduction in the size of existing unincorporated islands and other illogically configured areas that may promote infill development and the discouragement of urban sprawl.

Background

The Cortese-Knox Local Government Reorganization Act prohibits the annexation of territory to a city if the annexation would result in the creation of an unincorporated island. Unincorporated islands are defined as unincorporated territory completely surrounded by a city, or by territory of a city on one or more sides and the Pacific Ocean on the remaining sides. LAFCO may waive these restrictions if it finds that: (a) the application of the restrictions would be detrimental to the orderly development of the community, and (b) the area that would be enclosed is so located that it cannot reasonably be annexed to another city or incorporated as a new city.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to:

Consider the creation of unincorporated islands on a case-by-case basis and to balance the negative implications of unincorporated islands with the need to promote orderly development, the efficient provision of public services, and the reduction of the size of existing islands or other illogically configured areas. The following factors shall be considered in the Commission's determinations:

- 1. Consistency of the annexation proposal with the spheres of influence of all affected agencies.
- 2. Whether the unincorporated island that would be created is already substantially surrounded by the annexing city.
- 3. Whether the size of existing islands and other illogically configured areas will be reduced.

- 4. Effect of island prohibition provisions on creating secondary impacts, such as urban sprawl, inefficient service delivery, etc.
- 5. Ability to facilitate infill development within the annexation area.
- 6. Ancillary benefits associated with annexation that may offset disadvantages associated with the creation of unincorporated islands.
- 7. Environmental impacts that could be addressed through annexation of territory to a subject agency.
- 8. Existing or potential health or safety concerns that may be resolved through the annexation of island areas or other similar areas.
- 9. Need for essential city services within the annexation area.
- 10. Ability to consolidate and simplify the provision of public services.
- 11. Effect on the provision of public services within existing and newly created island area(s).
- 12. Completion of a survey of residents within the potential island or other illogically configured area to determine their willingness to be added to the annexation proposal.

Adopted: May 1, 2000

Cross-reference:

GOVERNMENT CODE:

-SECTION 56001 LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS AND DECLARATIONS

SAN DIEGO LAFCO POLICY:

-L-100 CITY ANNEXATION OF UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICTS

-L-102 SPHERES OF INFLUENCE

SAN DIEGO LAFCO PROCEDURES:

- CITY ANNEXATIONS AND DETACHMENTS
- SPHERES OF INFLUENCE

STRATEGY FOR CONDUCTING AND USING MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEWS

Purpose

To establish a framework that will assist the Local Agency Formation Commission in the timing, funding and preparation of municipal service reviews, while maintaining a focus on the service review determinations specified in State Law (GC 56430).

Background

AB 2838 (Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000) requires Local Agency Formation Commissions to conduct countywide, regional, or sub-regional municipal service reviews either before, or in conjunction with the establishment or updates of spheres to help ensure the efficient provision of local governmental services. The process of information collection, data analysis, and development of the service review determinations requires a high level of participation and cooperation between San Diego LAFCO and local agencies.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to use the following six strategies to assist in the planning and preparation of municipal service reviews:

- Scope of Work: In order to successfully manage the data collection and analysis processes and guide service reviews toward timely completion, each service review should have a well-defined scope of work that incorporates the following:
 - a. Develop and adhere to a realistic and manageable scope of work.
 - b. Define the services to be reviewed.
 - c. Identify unambiguous geographic boundaries for study areas.
 - d. Define the time period under review.
- 2. Defer review of services or service providers, which are marginally related to the pending service review, to subsequent service reviews, if necessary and appropriate. *Requests for Information*: Collection of data is dependent on the

cooperation and voluntary participation of local agencies. Requests for information should not represent an undue burden to local agencies and should be conducted in the following manner to maximize cooperation and participation levels:

- a. Discourage multiple requests for information unless there are compelling reasons.
- b. Limit requests for information to matters that are essential to conduct the service review and relevant to the nine determinations required by Government Code § 56430.
- 3. Service Review Time Frame: Service reviews provide a snapshot view of service delivery issues and are not meant to be ongoing studies. The following approaches will enable service reviews to be conducted in the shortest amount of time:
 - a. Develop a task and time schedule for each service review and adhere to it.
 - b. Confine data collection to the time period established under the scope of work unless there are compelling reasons to expand the time frame.
- 4. Regional View: Service reviews represent programmatic or macro-level information reports. The following approaches will reinforce the programmatic focus of service reviews:
 - a. Adhere to the seven service review determinations in maintaining a programmatic view of service delivery.
 - Focus on service delivery programs, procedures, policies and rules, rather than individuals who may be involved in the service delivery programs.
 - c. Collect micro-level data only if necessary and if associated with programmatic aspects of service delivery.
- 5. Level of Inquiry: Multiple agencies may be involved with a service review. Individual agencies may be subject to different levels of review and inquiry based on the following:

- a. Allow for variation within the type and amount of information requested for each service review and from each local agency based on unique circumstances. Utilize the judgment of staff, commissioners, advisory committees, stakeholders, public and agencies, etc., to establish an appropriate level of inquiry and data collection.
- b. Defer the collection of data that is marginally related to the pending service review to subsequent service reviews.
- 6. Data Accuracy: Accurate data is essential for making meaningful conclusions and determinations. In some cases, LAFCO staff may not be qualified to ascertain accuracy of data and will need to obtain outside assistance. In other instances, either raw data, or conclusions of service review may not be germane to LAFCO's purview of the service review determinations required by State Law. In order to maintain focus on accuracy and relevancy of data:
 - a. Utilize LAFCO staff, the Commission's advisory committees, local service agencies, or other appropriate organizations to determine data accuracy and relevancy.
 - Refer service reviews to other regulatory agencies if data is determined to pertain to areas outside of LAFCO's purview, or is not relevant to a pending service review.
 - c. Draft Municipal Service Reviews (MSR's) shall be provided to the affected agencies and public through direct mail or posting on the Commission website (www.sdlafco.org) for comment.

Adopted: Technically

April 7, 2003

Updated: August 25, 2008 June 23, 2015

JURISDICTIONAL ISSUES ASSOCIATED WITH PROPOSED OR PENDING CHANGES OF ORGANIZATION OR REORGANIZATION

Purpose

To establish a procedure for cities, special districts, the County of San Diego, and other interested parties and organizations to identify and discuss potential jurisdictional issues associated with proposed or pending LAFCO discretionary actions.

Background

Proposed changes of organization or reorganization may involve issues of concern for affected local residents, property owners, registered voters, interested parties, and organizations, as well as potential jurisdictional issues for affected cities, special districts, counties, and other public agencies.

While LAFCO is prohibited by State Law from directly regulating land use density or intensity, property development, or subdivision requirements [Government Code § 56375(a)(6)], LAFCO is required to consider a number of factors in the review of a proposal, including: the effects of a proposal on adjacent areas (Government Code § 56668(c); the proposal's consistency with city or county general and specific plans (Government Code § 56668(h); the comments of any affected local agency or other public agency (Government Code § 56668(j); any information or comments from the landowner or owners, voters, or residents of the affected territory (Government Code § 56668(n); and, any information relating to existing land use designations (Government Code § 56668(o).

When there are potential jurisdictional issues associated with proposed or pending jurisdictional changes, LAFCO staff has historically encouraged the lead agency and applicant to consult with all affected jurisdictions and interested parties to identify, discuss, and resolve the jurisdictional issues prior to LAFCO submittal. Proposal-related jurisdictional issues may involve questions about community character and/or cohesion; the ability of an agency to extend public services; potential environmental impacts; appropriate transitional areas between jurisdictions; special district detachment issues; or other local community or governmental concerns.

Therefore, the following policy has been adopted to encourage and facilitate early identification, discussion and potential resolution of any jurisdictional issues associated with proposed or pending LAFCO changes of organization of reorganization. While the identified jurisdictional issues may not be ultimately resolved to the satisfaction of all interested parties, the policy requires the proposal applicant or proponent to engage the interested parties and/or jurisdictions, to address the concerns associated with the proposal, and to determine if the identified issues have been resolved, or if additional discussions would allow for resolution.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission that:

- 1. Prior to submission of a proposal requesting LAFCO consideration of a change of organization or reorganization, the proposal applicant and representatives from affected public agencies, interested parties, and/or organizations, shall meet at the earliest possible stage for the purpose of identifying and attempting to resolve any issues associated with the proposed jurisdictional change(s). The Executive Officer may waive the consultation procedure outlined in this provision when it can be determined with certainty that there will be no possibility that the proposal in question will result in identified and unresolved jurisdictional issues.
- 2. The consultation process described in provision no. 1 should identify any jurisdictional issues or concerns related to:
 - a. Differing development standards;
 - Existing and/or planned land uses and zoning, including densities, community character, and appropriate jurisdictional transition areas;
 - c. Existing and/or planned provision of governmental services, including any potential impacts to service levels or financial ability to sustain service levels; and,
 - d. Any other local community or governmental concerns.

- 3. If an agreement is reached regarding provision no. 2, the subject proposal's LAFCO application shall include signed confirmation by representatives of the agencies or interested parties. LAFCO applications shall include signature confirmation forms documenting the agreement.
- 4. The Commission shall consider the agreement in its evaluation of the proposed jurisdictional change(s) to the extent that it is consistent with State Law and San Diego LAFCO policies and procedures.
- 5. If the parties have consulted in accordance with this policy and are unable to reach agreement, the parties shall, in writing, inform the Executive Officer of the areas in which they are unable to reach agreement and the desired outcome. Thereafter, the proposal shall proceed in accordance with State Law and applicable San Diego LAFCO policies and procedures.
- 6. Affected local agencies shall be encouraged to explore additional methods to improve future inter- and intra-departmental and jurisdictional communications for the purpose of discussing and commenting on proposed or pending jurisdictional changes at the earliest possible stage.

Adopted: May 3, 2010 Revised: April 4, 2016

Cross-reference:

SAN DIEGO LAFCO POLICY:

-L-100 CITY ANNEXATION OF UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY WITHIN SPECIAL DISTRICTS -L-103 RECOGNITION OF UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

SAN DIEGO LAFCO PROCEDURES:

-SPHERES OF INFLUENCE -LAFCO-INITIATED PROPOSALS

WATER SUPPLY AND RELIABILITY REGULATORY GUIDELINES

Purpose

To establish a procedure for local water agencies, cities, special districts, and the County of San Diego to discuss potential adequate water supply to existing and planned development projects within the County when submitting jurisdictional proposals to LAFCO as specified in Government Code Sections 56668(b) and (I) and 65352.5.

Background

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 requires Local Agency Formation Commissions to consider the availability of a reliable and adequate long term water supply as part of determinations. LAFCO and Local agencies under State Law must consider factors per Government Code Section 56668(b) and (I) and include compliance with Government Code Section 65352.5 (adequacy of existing and planned water supplies) in submittal of proposals to LAFCO for any change of organization and annexations.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission that:

- San Diego LAFCO's role is to oversee the logical service delivery through efficient local governmental organization structure for future services as defined in Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act of 2000. The Commission shall encourage that long range planning for availability of water supply and reliability should be integrated within the local water agencies, cities, special districts, County of San Diego, SANDAG and San Diego LAFCO.
- Decision-making with regard to development of water supply and reliability should be focused at the regional and local level through coordinated activities and planning of local water agencies, cities, special districts and the County of San Diego. The Commission shall support these efforts where possible to meet legislative and regulatory goals and mandates.

- 3. The development of alternative water sources, conservation, demand management and demand impact offset programs to mitigate new projects or services by regional and/or local water agencies and proponents of proposal will be considered in reviewing proposals submitted to the Commission. LAFCO will collaborate (seek input from and provide comments to) with agencies on the establishment of water supply and availability programs and criteria as they are developed.
- 4. During its review and processing of jurisdictional proposals, the Commission shall place primary reliance on the input and recommendations of the local agency responsible for availability of water supply and delivery when a proposal is submitted for consideration that may impact an agency service area, sphere of influence or services being provided. It will be the intent of LAFCO to rely upon the subject agency to provide sufficient analysis of proposals impacting water supply and availability for LAFCO review. The use of resource documents such as Master Plans for Facilities and Urban Water Master Plans of the regional and local water agency will be encouraged as part of the project submittal process. This process is routinely included as part of submittal of "will serve letters" to planning agencies. In the future, any such water agency must also verify that enough water is reasonably expected to be available from that agency to provide the proposed service during a drought emergency. Where more than one service area or agency is impacted by a proposal, the Commission shall seek input from all affected agencies.
- 5. The Commission encourages input from the Special Districts Advisory Committee on policy and service related issues and shall consider the input by the committee on projects impacted by water supply and availability issues. The Executive Officer may refer those matters to the committee that are relevant for review and input prior to submitting them to Commission consideration.

Adopted: May 3, 2010

WATER SUPPLY AND RELIABILITY LEGISLATIVE GUIDELINES

Purpose

To establish a procedure for local water agencies, cities, special districts, and the County of San Diego to discuss potential adequate water supply to existing and planned development projects within the County when submitting jurisdictional proposals to LAFCO as specified in Government Code Sections 56668(b) and (I) and 65352.5.

Background

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 requires Local Agency Formation Commissions to consider the availability of a reliable and adequate long term water supply as part of determinations. LAFCO and Local agencies under State Law must consider factors per Government Code Section 56668(b) and (I) and include compliance with Government Code Section 65352.5 (adequacy of existing and planned water supplies) in submittal of proposals to LAFCO for any change of organization and annexations.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission that:

- 1. Decision-making with regard to water supply and reliability should be kept at the regional and local level through coordinated activities of local water agencies, cities, special districts and the County of San Diego.
- Water supply development, reliability, conservation and sustainability are essential principles to ensure an adequate and viable economic environment for present and future residents in San Diego County. Resources should be developed to be diversified where possible yet under local agency control and management.
- 3. The federal, state and regional agency's role in water supply development should be to provide intraregional coordination and incentives for supply reliability and to reduce or remove regulatory hurdles and barriers to conjunctive uses.

- Proposed actions by various agencies or entities to manage or control water supply and reliability should not restrict the ability of LAFCO to make required determinations on proposals before them subject to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act 2000.
- 5. Decisions by San Diego LAFCO shall encourage that long range planning for water supply and reliability be integrated within the local water agencies, cities, special districts, County of San Diego, SANDAG and San Diego LAFCO.
- 6. San Diego LAFCO will collaborate with, monitor and provide input to applicable federal, state, regional and local agencies and policy makers on issues impacting water supply and reliability, incorporating the Water Supply Legislative Guidelines as adopted by the Commission from time to time.

Adopted: May 3, 2010

Technically

Updated: June 22, 2016

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF FIRE PROTECTION CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS

Purpose

To provide guidance to the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) in reviewing fire protection contracts or agreements for the exercise of new or extended fire protection services outside a public agency's boundaries per Government Code Section 56134.

Background

Senate Bill No. 239 (Hertzberg) was approved in 2015 and became effective on January 1, 2016. SB 239 amended Government Code Sections 56017.2 and 56133, and added Section 56134. Per SB 239, public agencies, under specified circumstances, must receive written approval from the LAFCO in an affected county before providing new or extended fire protection services outside the agencies' jurisdictional boundaries, if the contract results in either of the following conditions: (1) transfers responsibility for providing services in more than 25% of the area within the jurisdictional boundaries of any public agency affected by the contract or agreement; or (2) changes the employment status of more than 25% of the employees of any public agency affected by the contract or agreement.

The new law places added responsibilities on local and state agencies, plus LAFCO. Since there are many uncertainties with respect to implementation of SB 239, the San Diego LAFCO adopted implementation guidelines on February 1, 2016. The adopted guidelines have been incorporated by reference into Legislative Policy L-110 and together, these two documents (guidelines and policy), will assist the Commission in following a consistent approach for the review and approval of fire protection contract applications.

Policy

It is the policy of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission to use a multistep process for the review of fire protection contacts and agreements. The process begins with pre-application consultation; application review; commission consideration; and commission action. This process will be guided by the following

provisions:

- 1. Pre-Application Review and Discussion: Prior to submission of a proposal requesting LAFCO consideration, the Commission encourages public agencies and service recipients to participate in a pre-application discussion with LAFCO staff. As part of the pre-application discussion, the Executive Officer shall determine whether the proposed fire protection contract or agreement is subject to or exempt from LAFCO purview. A Certificate of Exemption shall be issued by the Executive Officer if the contract or agreement is exempt from LAFCO purview. The San Diego LAFCO and/or Executive Officer will consider the following contracts and agreements exempt from LAFCO purview per its adopted guidelines:
 - a. Renewal of existing contracts, unless the renewal included amendments or the inclusion of new territory that triggered the 25% change in service area or employment status.
 - b. Ambulance service agreements.
 - c. Pre-hospital emergency medical services.
 - d. Mutual or automatic aid agreements.
 - e. Contracts or agreements involving dispatch services.
 - d. Subordinate or subsidiary fire protection activities including, but not limited to the following: ambulance services; pre-hospital emergency medical services; mutual or automatic aid agreements; major/minor subdivision review, major Use Permit review, administrative permit review and inspections; fire alarm system plan review and inspections; defensible space inspections and enforcement; business/occupancy inspections in existing structures; vehicle maintenance and repair; sharing of management or other personnel between or among multiple agencies; sharing or loaning of equipment or property between or among multiple agencies.
- 2. Application Review: The Executive Officer shall within 30 days of receipt of a fire contract or agreement determine whether the associated contract application is complete and acceptable for filing. The Executive Officer shall notify the applicant if the application is incomplete and the manner in which the application can be rectified if determined to be incomplete.

- a. Once the application is ready for Commission consideration, the Executive Officer shall give mailed notice of the hearing, at least 21 days prior to the hearing date, to each affected local agency or affected county and to any interested party who has filed a written request for notice.
- b. The Executive Officer shall also publish the notice of hearing in a newspaper of general circulation that is circulated within the territory affected by the proposal and shall post the notice on LAFCO's website at least 21 days prior to the hearing date.
- 3. Commission Consideration: The Commission shall not approve a proposed fire protection contract unless it determines, based on the entire record, all of the following:
 - a. The public agency will have sufficient revenues to carry out the exercise of the new or extended fire protection services outside its current area. The Commission may approve an application where the Commission has determined that the public agency will not have sufficient revenue to provide the proposed new or different functions of services, if the Commission conditions its approval on the concurrent approval of sufficient revenue sources.
 - b. The proposed exercise of new or extended fire protection services outside a public agency's current service area is consistent with the intent of SB 239, LAFCO's state mandates and established policies and procedures.
 - c. The Commission has reviewed the plan for service.
 - d. The Commission has reviewed the comprehensive fiscal analysis.
 - e. The Commission has reviewed any testimony presented at the public hearing.
 - f. The proposed affected territory is expected to receive revenues sufficient to provide public services and facilities and a reasonable reserve during the three fiscal years following the effective date of the contract or agreement between the public agencies to provide the new or extended fire protection services.
- 4. Commission Action: The Commission may approve, approve with condition(s), or disapprove, the contract for new or extended services upon closure of the associated LAFCO hearing and/or administrative proceeding.

- a. Approval-If the Commission determines all the requirements under Government Code Section 56134 have been met, the Commission shall adopt a resolution of approval or other associated document. For contracts that receive consensus from all affected agencies, the Commission may delegate the approval process to the Executive Officer. Any administratively-approved fire contract shall be scheduled as an informational item at the next available LAFCO hearing and may be subject to ratification, as necessary.
- b. Approval with Conditions-If the Commission or Executive Officer approves the contract or agreement with conditions, the Commission shall adopt a resolution of approval or other document with the conditions listed. For contracts that receive consensus from all affected agencies, the Commission may delegate the approval process to the Executive Officer. Any administratively-approved fire contract shall be scheduled as an informational item at the next available LAFCO hearing and may be subject to ratification, as necessary.
- c. Disapproval-If the Commission or Executive Officer disapproves the contract or agreement, termination proceedings mirroring the procedures outlined in Government Code Section 57090 shall be followed. Pursuant to Government Code Section 57090(a), if a proposal is terminated, no substantially similar proposal for a change or organization of the same or substantially the same territory may be filed with the commission within one year after the date of the certificate of termination. This waiting period may be waived by the Commission if public health, safety, or welfare issues are present.
- d. Reconsideration-The Commission establishes a 30-day request for reconsideration period tolled from when a fire protection contract is considered by the Commission or Executive Officer. The request for reconsideration must be in writing and shall be subject to LAFCO's reconsideration rules and payment of associated processing fees.

Adopted: June 2, 2016

Amended: May 7, 2018

DISADVANTAGED UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

Purpose

To establish a comprehensive policy and procedural program for regularly identifying and addressing disadvantaged unincorporated communities in San Diego County in step with processing boundary changes, municipal service reviews, and sphere of influence updates and/or amendments.

Background

Effective January 1, 2012, SB 244 requires the identification and description of all disadvantaged unincorporated communities (DUC) located within or contiguous to the existing spheres of influence of cities and special districts that provide structural fire protection, wastewater, and/or water services. The underlying focus us to ensure DUCs and their residents are not excluded from proposed boundary changes and proactively addressed during the processes for municipal service reviews and sphere of influence updates and/or amendments.

Policy

It is the policy of the Commission that:

- 1. This policy shall be referred to as the Commission's "Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities Program."
- 2. The following definitions are incorporated in administering this program:
 - "Community" is an inhabited area within a city or county that is a. comprised of no less than 10 dwellings adjacent or in close proximity to one another. (Government Code Section 65302.10)
 - "Contiguous" is adjacent to or within an agency's sphere of b. influence or shares a boundary line with a city or special district.(Government Code Section 65302.10)
 - "Disadvantaged Unincorporated Community" is an inhabited C. territory that constitutes all or portion of a disadvantaged community having an annual median household income that is

- less than 80 percent of the statewide annual household income. (Government Code Sections 65302.10, 79505.5, and 56033.5)
- d. "Inhabited" is a territory within which there reside 12 or more registered voters. (Government Code Sections 65302.10 and 56046)
- e. "Median Household Income" is income that is less than 80 percent of the statewide annual household income. (Government Code Section 65302.10)
- f. "Written Evidence" is a petition signed by the majority of registered voters within the affected territory. (Government Code Section 65302.10)
- Beginning January 1, 2012, the Commission shall establish and update DUC maps for all cities and special districts under LAFCO authority in San Diego County.
- 4. The following procedures shall underlie the establishment and subsequent updating of DUC maps:
 - a. DUCs shall be identified and mapped by census tract and based on the most recent five—year average.
 - b. DUC maps shall be updated every five years in conjunction with commencing a new round of municipal service reviews and sphere of influence updates under Government Code Sections 56430 and 56425, respectively.
 - c. Draft DUC maps shall be made available to local agencies for review and comment before being presented to the Commission at a public meeting in final form for formal acceptance.
- 5. The Commission shall incorporate DUC maps and information therein as part of the municipal service review and sphere of influence update and/or processes:
 - a. Any municipal service review update for a city or special district that provides public facilities or services related to water, wastewater, or structural fire protection the Commission shall evaluate the location and characteristics of any DUCs located

- within or adjacent to the sphere of influence of the affected agencies. (Government Code Section 56430)
- b. Any sphere of influence update and/or amendment for a city or district that provides public facilities or services related to water, wastewater, or structural fire protection the Commission shall consider the present and probable needs for DUCs and their residents located within the affected agencies' sphere of influence. (Government Code Section 56425)
- The Executive Officer shall perform outreach to residents within C. affected DUCs as part of the municipal service review and sphere of influence update and/or amendment processes. This outreach will be appropriately scaled as determined by the Executive Officer to help ensure residents are made reasonably aware of the proceedings and given the opportunity to comment before Commission action is taken.
- 6. Any annexation to a city of any territory greater than 10 acres that excludes a contiguous DUC will require filing an application to annex the DUC unless exempted under Government Code Section 56375(a):
 - For purposes of this subsection a certificate of filing serves as the threshold for determining an "application" is on file with the Commission.

Adopted: May 7, 2018

CONDUCT OF PROTEST HEARINGS

Policy

1. Authority to Conduct Protest Hearings

Pursuant to Title 5, Division 3, Part 4 of the California Government (commencing with section 57000), the Commission shall conduct all protest hearings and take all other actions required of it to complete proceedings for changes of organization or reorganization, unless the Commission, in its discretion, delegates to the Executive Officer consistent with the provisions of this policy.

2. Delegation at Time of Adoption of Resolution

Each time the Commission adopts a resolution making determination approving, with or without conditions, a change of organization or reorganization, the Commission shall also determine whether to conduct the protest hearing or delegate to the Executive Officer. Such a decision of the Commission may be made upon recommendation of the Executive Officer or by motion of a Commission member.

3. Valuation of Written Protests

Irrespective of the Commission conducting the protest hearing or delegating to the Executive Officer, the same procedures shall apply in receiving and valuing written protests. These procedures are outlined as Appendix One to this policy.

Delegation to Executive Officer

If the Commission delegates to the Executive Officer the authority to conduct a protest hearing for an approved change of organization or reorganization, the Executive Officer shall conduct the protest hearing in accordance with Government Code section 57000, et seq., and the following:

- a) The protest hearing shall be held in a location open to the public and suitable for the conduct of a public hearing;
- b) The Executive Officer shall provide each Commission member and alternate written notice of the date, time, and location of all protest hearings and any continuances thereof;
- c) The Executive Officer shall be the hearing officer for the protest hearing;
- The Executive Officer shall conduct the protest hearing consistent with the manner in which the Commission conducts public hearings;
- At the protest hearing, the Executive Officer shall hear and receive any oral or written protest, objection or evidence which is presented, or filed, and accept the withdrawal of any protest prior to the close of the hearing;
- f) The Executive Officer shall cause a record to be made of the protest hearing, and shall preserve as part of the record all written protests, objections and evidence presented or filed at the protest hearing;
- g) After the protest hearing, the Executive Officer shall cause the protests filed and not withdrawn to be reviewed in accordance with the requirements of Government Code section 57052;
- h) Should the value of the protests filed and not withdrawn not require an election or termination, the Executive Officer shall proceed and prepare an ordering resolution in accordance with the requirements of Government Code section 57000, et seq. The Executive Officer shall provide notice of the ordering resolution to the Commission at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

- i) Should the value of the protests filed and not withdrawn either require an election or termination, the Executive Officer shall prepare a report to the Commission and recommend the Commission the adoption of a resolution conformity with the outcome of the protest hearing per Government Code section 57000, et seq. The Executive Officer shall present the report and a draft resolution to the Commission for its consideration at the next regularly scheduled meeting.
- 5. Commission Action with Respect to Protest Hearings Conducted by **Executive Officer**

The Commission may accept or reject the Executive Officer's recommendations, or make modifications based upon review of the protest hearing record. The Commission may take any other actions prescribed by Government Code section 57000, et seq., for completion of proceedings for a change of organization of reorganization.

6. Limitation on Delegation of Authority to Executive Officer

> Except as expressly provided for herein, the Commission shall retain its authority pursuant to Government Code section 57000, et seg. This policy however, in no way limits the Commission's ability to expressly delegate other tasks to the Executive Officer to the extent such delegation is authorized by Government Code.

Adopted: October 1, 2018

Appendix One: Written Valuation Procedures

Appendix One Written Valuation Procedures

1. Receipt of Written Protests

> LAFCO shall write the date and time on all written protests immediately upon receipt.

2. Counting of Written Protests

> LAFCO will count all written protests received, and not withdrawn prior to the time certain the proceedings are concluded, via any of the following means:

- U.S. mail received at LAFCO's office by 5:00 p.m. on the business day preceding the protest hearing date; or
- Courier delivery received at LAFCO's office by 5:00 p.m. on the business day preceding the protest hearing date; or
- Facsimile (fax) transmission, received at LAFCO's office by 5:00 p.m. on the business day preceding the protest hearing date; or
- Electronic mail (e-mail) transmission, received at LAFCO's office by 5:00 p.m. on the business day preceding the protest hearing date; or
- Hand-delivered to LAFCO's office by the protesting party or his or her duly-authorized representative received at LAFCO's office by 5:00 p.m. on the business day preceding the protest hearing date; or
- Hand-delivered to the Commission and/or staff, at the noticed protest meeting of the Commission, by the protesting party or his or her dulyauthorized representative, on the protest hearing date and prior to the closing of the protest hearing by the Commission Chair or Acting Chair.

LAFCO will not count written protests received via any of the following means:

Bearing a date prior to the date of publication of the protest hearing notice: or

Delivered to the Commission and/or staff after the closing of the protest hearing by the Commission Chair or Acting Chair.

3. Valuing Written Protests

For purposes of valuing written protests only, any reference in this policy and in the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 to the close of the protest hearing will be construed to mean the close of the final protest hearing, meaning that any continuance of the protest hearing pursuant to Government Code Section 57050(a) will extend during which written protests will be accepted.

a) Registered Voter Protest:

Data obtained from the County of San Diego Registrar of Voters (ROV) shall determine the total number of registered voters within the boundaries of the affected territory at the time of the noticed protest hearing. Further, for purposes of calculating registered voter protests, LAFCO shall calculate the applicable percentage thresholds based upon the data obtained from the ROV.

LAFCO will count written protests from registered voters which include all of the following required information:

- Address of the property, providing street and number or other designation sufficient to enable the place of residence to be ascertained: and
- Signature of the registered voter; and
- Date of signature must be within the period starting with the publication of the protest hearing notice and ending at the time of the closing of the protest hearing by the Commission Chair or Acting Chair.

LAFCO will not count written protests from registered voters under any of the following circumstances:

The address of the property, or other designation sufficient to enable the place of residence to be ascertained, is not provided; or

- The signature of the registered voter is not provided; or
- The date of signature is not provided; or
- The date of signature is prior to the date of publication of the protest hearing notice; or
- The date of signature is after the date of the closing of the protest hearing by the Commission Chair or Acting Chair; or
- The written protest is from a registered voter who is not registered to vote within the boundaries of the affected territory; or
- The written protest was not received consistent with the provisions in Section 1 ("Receipt of Written Protests"), above; or
- The individual who originally filed the protest withdraws his or her protest, in writing, within the time constraints identified herein; or
- Any protest which has been disqualified by the ROV, in the event that the Executive Officer refers registered voter protests to the ROV.

LAFCO staff will count all valid written protests from registered voters to determine the valuation and outcome. The Executive Officer may, at his or her discretion, refer any registered voter written protests to ROV for verification.

b) Landowner Protest:

Data obtained from the County of San Diego Assessor Office's current tax rolls shall determine the total number of landowners within the boundaries of the affected territory. Further, for purposes of identifying all landowners and for calculating landowner protests. LAFCO shall calculate the applicable percentage thresholds based upon current tax rolls and the assessed value of land obtained from the Assessor.

LAFCO will count written protests from landowners which include all of the following required information:

- Address of the property, providing street and number or other designation sufficient to enable the location of the property within the affected territory to be ascertained; and
- Signature of the landowner; and
- The date of signature must be within the period starting with the publication of the protest hearing notice and ending at the time of the closing of the protest hearing by the Commission Chair or Acting Chair.

LAFCO will not count written protests from landowners under the following circumstances:

- The address of the property, or other designation sufficient to enable the location of the property within the affected territory to be ascertained, is not provided; or
- The signature of the landowner is not provided; or
- The date of signature is not provided; or
- The date of signature is prior to the date of publication of the protest hearing notice; or
- The date of signature is after the date of the closing of the protest hearing by the Commission Chair or Acting Chair;
- The written protest was not received consistent with the provisions in Section 1 ("Receipt of Written Protests"), above;
- The individual signing the written protest is different than the owner of record provided by the Assessor based upon the most recent assessment roll, subject to the requirements of the exception identified in Government Code Section 56710(c); or

 The individual who originally filed the protest withdraws his or her protest, in writing, within the time constraints identified herein.

For those properties which are exempt from taxation owned by a public agency, the valuation shall be determined consistent with Government Code Section 56710(a).

For those properties held in joint tenancy or tenancy in common, the valuation shall be determined consistent with Government Code Section 56710(b).

4. All Protests in Writing

While oral testimony will be considered by the Commission, said testimony will not have any effect on the valuation of protests. Under state law, and this policy, it is only written protests, not later withdrawn in writing, if applicable, that count.

Outcomes

Government Code Sections 57075 through 57077.4 describes whether the Commission considers written protests from registered voters, landowners, or both. Based on the valuation of the applicable protests, these sections dictate which of the following actions the Commission must take:

- Terminate the proceedings; or
- Order the change of organization or reorganization subject to an election; or
- Order the change of organization or reorganization without an election.

6. Results

The Commission may announce results at the conclusion of the protest hearing, or, in the alternative, may postpone the announcement to a future meeting if LAFCO staff needs time to verify and value written protests.